Public Document Pack
Copeland Borough Council
The Market Hall
Market Place
Whitehaven
CA28 7JG

EXECUTIVE
AGENDA
Venue:
Date:
Time:
Contact Officer:

The Atrium, The Copeland Centre,
Catherine Street, Whitehaven. CA28 7SJ
Tuesday, 15th June, 2021
10.00 am
Clive Willoughby
Tel: 07385 362806

1.

Apologies for Absence

2.

Statements of Executive Decisions of the Meeting held on 20
April 2021

3.

Declarations of Interests in Agenda Items:

4.

Written Questions from Members of the Public

5.

Reports from Overview and Scrutiny Committee

6.

Forward Plan

9 - 14

7.

Corporate Performance Update for Quarter Four of 2020/21

15 - 44

8.

Copeland Community Lottery

45 - 58

9.

Confidential Reporting (Whistleblowing) Policy

59 - 72

10.

Date and Time of Next Meeting:

1-8

The next meeting of the Executive will be held on Tuesday 27 July 2021
at 10:00am in the Atrium, The Copeland Centre, Catherine Street,
Whitehaven.

NOTES
Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting as observers
except during the consideration of exempt or confidential items. If you have a
query on the meeting arrangements or if you require a copy of this document
in a different format (large print, braille, audio tape, electronic formats such
as CD or in a different language) please contact the relevant officer as shown
below.

Call-In
Most of the decisions taken by the Executive can be ‘called in’, in accordance
with Council’s Constitution, within 5 working days of the decision notice being
published. It is expected that the decision notice will be published on 18 June
2021. Subject to this publication, the deadline for calling in any decision is
5.00pm on 25 June 2021.
Emergency procedures
In the event of a fire alarm being sounded please follow the instructions of the
Chair; leave the building via the nearest emergency exit and make your way to
the Fire Assembly Point located in the Copeland Centre car park.

Reporting
Recording, filming and reporting of this meeting is allowed but must be done
in accordance with the protocol which is clearly displayed in the room and all
mobile devices must be switched to silent.

Contacts:

Direct Dial: 07385 362806
E-mail:
clive.willoughby@copeland.gov.uk
Website: www.copeland.gov.uk

Copeland Borough Council
The Market Hall
Market Place
Whitehaven
CA28 7JG

Agenda Item 2

Notice of Decisions Taken Under Delegated Powers
by the Executive on Tuesday, 20 April 2021
NOTES: The deadline for calling in any of these decisions is 5.00 pm on 30 April 2021.
A copy of the Executive agenda setting out all the reports has previously been
circulated to all Members of the Council.
Officers are asked to read this Decision Notice, as it is the responsibility of the
Officer named in the Action Column to ensure that the appropriate action is taken.
If you require further information on any issue please contact the Officer named in
the right hand column. For general information or to obtain a copy of any
documentation please contact Member Services.
Present: Mayor Mike Starkie, Councillors David Moore, Steven Morgan and
Andy Pratt
Officers Present: Pat Graham, Chief Executive; Sarah Pemberton, Director of
Corporate Services and Commercial Strategy; Steven Brown, Director of Financial
Resources; Clinton Boyce, Solicitor; Clive Willoughby, Democratic Services Officer;
Rose Blaney, Democratic Services Officer;
Also Present: Councillor Felicity Wilson (Deputy Chair of Overview and Scrutiny
Committee).

EXE
Apologies for Absence
20/240
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor John Kane (Chair of
Overview and Scrutiny Committee)
EXE
Statements of Executive Decisions of the Meeting held on 16 March 2021
20/241 and 1 April 2021
RESOLVED – The Statements of Decisions made on the 16th March 2021
and 1st April 2021, were agreed as a correct record and will be signed by
the Mayor as soon as practicable.

Page 1

EXE
Declarations of Interests in Agenda Items:
20/242
No declarations of Interest were made by those present.

Item
No.
EXE
20/243

Decision
WRITTEN QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC

CLT Lead
N\A

To receive written questions from members of the public.
Decision
Not applicable as no questions had been received from
Members of the public.
Reason for Decision
N/A
Alternative options considered and rejected (if any)
N/A

Item
No.
EXE
20/244

Decision
REPORTS FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
To receive any recommendations from the Overview and
Scrutiny Committee.
Councillor Felicity Wilson (Deputy Chair of Overview and
Scrutiny Committee) stated that the Committee met on 15th
April 2021. Executive were advised that five Task and Finish
Groups had now been established and that the Recycling
group were aiming to report back in June/July. The Executive
were reminded that Task and Finish Groups were open to all
members and were asked to encourage other members to get
involved. Concern was expressed on behalf of OSC at the
number of meetings being either re-scheduled or cancelled. At

Page 2

CLT Lead
N\A

the 15th April OSC meeting, comments were made regarding
the non attendance of the Mayor and the Director of Finance.
It was made clear that the OSC were aware that the Director
of Finance was on leave and that the Mayor had not been
invited to attend. The Mayor confirmed he was willing to
attend OSC at any time, if invited.
Decision
The update from the Overview and Scrutiny Committee be
noted.
Reason for Decision
Comments received from the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee are taken into account when Executive decisions
are made.
Alternative options considered and rejected (if any)
None

Item
No.
EXE
20/245

Decision
FORWARD PLAN

CLT Lead
N\A

Decision
RESOLVED - that the forward plan be agreed.
Reason for Decision
The Local Authority (Executive Arrangements (Access to
information (England) Regulations 2012 requires a forward
plan to be prepared in respect of key decisions. The work plan
is good practice.
Alternative options considered and rejected (if any)
N/A

Page 3

Item
No.
EXE
20/246

Decision
THE MAGNOX INQUIRY - FINAL REPORT

CLT Lead

Pat Graham,
Chief
To receive an update on the final report published in March Executive
2021 relating to the management of the Magnox competition
process undertaken by the Nuclear Decommissioning
Authority (NDA) between 2012 and 2017.
Decision
RESOLVED: that the information contained within the report
be noted.
Reason for Decision
As the local authority representing the community most
affected by the NDA’s activities, the Council takes a keen
interest in the NDA’s performance in delivering best value for
the taxpayer in delivering its mission to deliver safe,
sustainable and publicly acceptable solutions to the challenge
of nuclear clean-ip and waste management.
Alternative options considered and rejected (if any)
No other options were considered.

Page 4

Item
No.
EXE
20/247

Decision

CLT Lead

AMENDMENT OF PUBLIC SPACE PROTECTION ORDER NO. 1 OF Pat Graham,
2019 - ALCOHOL CONTROL
Chief
Executive
Executive were asked to consider a report proposing a minor
amendment to the Council’s Public Space Protection Order
No.1 of 2019 – Alcohol Control (‘the Order’) regulating the
consumption of alcohol to enable ‘pavement licences’ under
the Business and Planning Act 2020 to be granted in areas
subject to the Order.
Decision
RESOLVED – That the Public Space Protection Order No. 1 of
2019 – Alcohol Control be amended to include as an
exemption from the controls created by that Order those
areas which are granted a pavement licence in accordance
with the Business and Planning Act 2020 so that paragraph
3(b) of the Order reads: “Exemptions shall apply in cases
where, for the avoidance of doubt, the consumption of alcohol
is on premises or public space licensed under the Licensing Act
2003 or under part 1 of the Business and Planning Act 2020
and for the hours so licensed”.
Reason for Decision
Public Space Protection Orders are an Executive function.
Emerging from the Covid-19 pandemic lockdown, pubs, cafes
and others in the hospitality industry can sell alcohol outside
their premises, likely to be on pavements. The Business and
Planning Act 2020 was introduced to create a simplified and
quicker procedure for businesses to obtain an authorisation to
‘put removable furniture on part of a relevant highway
adjacent to the premises for either or both of’ selling and
consuming food outside the premises. A problem has arisen in
the grant of pavement licences where a Public Space
Protection Order is in place. This minor amendment is the
easiest solution.
Alternative options considered and rejected (if any)
No other options were considered.

Page 5

Item
No.
EXE
20/248

Decision
EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

CLT Lead
N\A

Decision
RESOLVED – that the press and public be excluded for the
remaining items of business in view of the likely disclosure of
exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of part 1 of the
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as
amended).
Reason for Decision
N/A
Alternative options considered and rejected (if any)
N/A

Item
No.
EXE
20/249

Decision
CLINICAL WASTE COLLECTIONS

CLT Lead

Sarah
Pemberton,
The Executive was requested to consider a report on Clinical Director of
Waste Collections.
Corporate
Services and
Decision
Commercial
Strategy
RESOLVED – that the recommendation as stated on the
agenda report be agreed.
Reason for Decision
This is a key decision which would inform policy.
Alternative options considered and rejected (if any)
No other options were considered.

Page 6

EXE
Date and Time of Next Meeting:
20/250
The date for next meeting of the Executive would be advised when set.

The Meeting closed at 11.10 am

Mayor

Page 7

This page is intentionally left blank

Executive 15 June 2021
MAYOR’S FORWARD PLAN AND WORK PLAN
This Plan is published in accordance with the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England)
Regulations 2012. It provides details of key decisions which the Executive will be making during the above period.

Page 9

A key decision is a decision made by the Mayor either by himself, through his Executive, by individual Executive members or by officers
performing an Executive function and is one which either results in the Council incurring expenditure or making savings which are significant
(compared to the local authority’s budget for the service or function to which the decision relates) or is one which is significant in terms of its
effects on communities living or working in an area comprising of two or more wards or electoral divisions in the area. The Council’s
constitution states that ‘significant’ includes (a) any decision by the Executive in relation to proposed recommendations to Council to amend
the policy framework; (b) any single item of expenditure or savings in excess of £50,000; or (c) any decision which is likely to have a
permanent or long term (more than 5 years) effect on the Council or the Borough.
A key decision cannot be made until at least 28 clear days has elapsed between publication of this document and the day the decision is made.
An exception to this rule is where such publication of intention is impracticable. In those circumstances the period of 28 clear days may be
reduced to 5 clear days provided that the chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee has been informed of the matter and shorter
notice has been publicised. If 5 clear days cannot be given then a decision may only be made if the Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee has agreed to the making of the decision on the grounds that the decision is urgent and cannot unreasonably be deferred.

Copies of any document listed in the plan will be available from the officer shown in the table when the report is released, subject to them not
containing confidential or exempt information.

Information Classification - UNCLASSIFIED

Agenda Item 6

Where the decision maker is shown to be the Executive, the Executive will comprise of Mayor Mike Starkie and Councillors David Moore as
Deputy Mayor, Steven Morgan and Andy Pratt.

Page 10

Report

Who will
make the
decision

Date on which the
decision will be
made

Portfolio
Holder

2020/21 Council
Performance Plan –
Quarter 4

Executive

Executive
15 June 2021

Nuclear & Corporate Sarah Pemberton –
Services
Director of Corporate
Cllr David Moore
Services and Commercial
Strategy (M.O.)

Yes

No

Copeland
Community Lottery

Executive

Executive
15 June 2021

Commercial
Services
Cllr Steven Morgan

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate
Services and Commercial
Strategy (M.O.)

Yes

No

Confidential
Reporting Policy

Executive

Executive
15 June 2021

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate
Services and Commercial
Strategy (M.O.)

Yes

No

Outside Bodies
Annual Report

Council

OSC
10 June 2021

Nuclear & Corporate Sarah Pemberton –
Services
Director of Corporate
Cllr David Moore
Services and Commercial
Strategy (M.O.)

No

No

Nuclear & Corporate Sarah Pemberton –
Services
Director of Corporate
Cllr David Moore
Services and Commercial
Strategy (M.O.)

No

No

Council
22 June 2021
Annual Scrutiny
Report

Council

OSC
10 June 2021
Council
22 June 2021

Information Classification - UNCLASSIFIED

Lead Officer

Key
Decision

Likely to contain
confidential
or exempt
information

Page 11

Report

Who will
make the
decision

Date on which the
decision will be
made

Portfolio
Holder

Lead Officer

2020/21 Finance
Report – Quarter 4

Executive

Executive
27 July 2021

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Steven Brown –
Director of Financial
Resources

Moss Bay Enterprise
Trust

Executive

Executive
27 July 2021

Health and Safety
Monitoring Half
Yearly Report
1st Jan – 30th Jun ‘21

Executive

Fleet Renewal

Corporate Debt
Recovery Policy

Likely to contain
confidential
or exempt
information

Yes

No

Nuclear & Corporate Pat Graham –
Services
Chief Executive
Cllr David Moore

Yes

No

Executive
27 July 2021

Nuclear & Corporate Pat Graham –
Services
Chief Executive
Cllr David Moore

No

No

Executive

Executive
27 July 2021

Commercial Services Sarah Pemberton –
Cllr Steven Morgan Director of Corporate
Services and Commercial
Strategy (M.O.)

Yes

Council

Executive
24 August 2021

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Yes

Council
7 September 2021

Information Classification - UNCLASSIFIED

Key
Decision

Steven Brown –
Director of Financial
Resources

No

Page 12

Report

Who will
make the
decision

Date on which the
decision will be
made

Portfolio
Holder

2021/22 Council
Performance Plan –
Quarter 1

Executive

Executive
24 August 2021

Nuclear & Corporate Sarah Pemberton –
Services
Director of Corporate
Cllr David Moore
Services and Commercial
Strategy (M.O.)

Yes

No

2021/22 Finance
Report – Quarter 1

Executive

Executive
24 August 2021

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Yes

No

Constitution
Refresh/Update

Council

Council
7 September 2021

Nuclear & Corporate Sarah Pemberton –
Services
Director of Corporate
Cllr David Moore
Services and Commercial
Strategy (M.O.)

Yes

No

Constitution –
Council
Financial Regulations

Council
7 September 2021

Nuclear & Corporate Sarah Pemberton –
Services
Director of Corporate
Cllr David Moore
Services and Commercial
Strategy (M.O.)

Yes

No

2021/22 Council
Performance Plan –
Quarter 2

Executive
9 November 2021

Nuclear & Corporate Sarah Pemberton –
Services
Director of Corporate
Cllr David Moore
Services and Commercial
Strategy (M.O.)

Yes

No

Information Classification - UNCLASSIFIED

Executive

Lead Officer

Steven Brown –
Director of Financial
Resources

Key
Decision

Likely to contain
confidential
or exempt
information

Page 13

Report

Who will
make the
decision

Date on which the
decision will be
made

Portfolio
Holder

Lead Officer

2021/22 Finance
Report – Quarter 2

Executive

Executive
9 November 2021

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Steven Brown –
Director of Financial
Resources

2021/22 Council
Performance Plan –
Quarter 3

Executive

Executive
1 February 2022

2021/22 Finance
Report – Quarter 3

Executive

Health and Safety
Monitoring Half
Yearly Report
1st Jul – 31st Dec ‘21

Executive

Information Classification - UNCLASSIFIED

Key
Decision

Likely to contain
confidential
or exempt
information

Yes

No

Nuclear & Corporate Sarah Pemberton –
Services
Director of Corporate
Cllr David Moore
Services and Commercial
Strategy (M.O.)

Yes

No

Executive
1 February 2022

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Yes

No

Executive
1 February 2022

Nuclear & Corporate Pat Graham –
Services
Chief Executive
Cllr David Moore

No

No

Steven Brown –
Director of Financial
Resources

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7
EXE15062021

CORPORATE PERFORMANCE UPDATE FOR QUARTER FOUR OF 2020-21
EXECUTIVE MEMBER:

Cllr David Moore

LEAD OFFICER:

Sarah Pemberton,
Director of Corporate Services and Commercial Strategy

REPORT AUTHOR:

Gillian Butterworth,
Performance and Risk Management Officer

WHY HAS THIS REPORT COME TO THE EXECUTIVE?
The Executive is responsible for managing the resources of the Council and seeking to
ensure that best value through continuous improvement is embedded throughout all of the
Council’s business.
RECOMMENDATION:
a) Note performance of Key Performance Indicators
1.

INTRODUCTION

1.1

The Executive monitors achievement of the Council’s strategic ambitions and key
performance targets through the Performance Management and Improvement
Framework. This report presents the outturn position of Key Performance Indicators
at the end of Quarter four 2020/21.

2.0

DETAILS

2.1

At the end of Quarter four;
 74% of KPIs had met the target set for Quarter four of 2020/21 (17 out of 23).
(Quarter four data was available for 23 of 24 KPIs at the time of reporting).

2.2



75% of KPIs met their overall annual target set for the year (18 out of 24).



Analysis of the annual KPIs figures shows that 54% of KPIs performed as well
as or better than the previous year. (13 out of 24)

Tables 1 and 2 below list corporately owned and non-corporately owned KPIs, the
tables show ‘at a glance’ whether each KPI met the Quarter four target; the
overall annual target and whether the annual outturn performance was, equal to or
better than the previous year.
Full details and end of year analysis of all KPIs are listed in Appendix A.
1

Page 15

EXE15062021

Table 1. Corporately owned KPIs
Was the
20/21_
Q4 target
met?

Corporately owned Key Performance Indicator

KPI 9

Local people supported with employability and skills

KPI 10

Speed of processing - new HB claims

KPI 11

Speed of processing - new CTR claims

KPI 12

Speed of processing - changes for HB claims

KPI 13

Speed of processing - changes for CTR claims

KPI 14

Homeless relief cases resolved in 52 day timeframe

KPI 15

Domestic Abuse crisis intervention/support

KPI 17

% Freedom of information requests closed in timescale

KPI 21

% 'major' planning applications determined within 13
weeks

KPI 22

% planning 'minor' planning applications determined
within 8 weeks

KPI 23

% 'other' applications determined within 8 weeks

KPI 24

Percentage of planning appeals dismissed

2

Page 16

Was the
20/21
annual
target
met?

Was the
20/21
outturn
better
than
19/20?

EXE15062021

Table 2 Non- Corporately owned KPIs
Non Corporately owned Key Performance Indicator

KPI 1

Percentage of Council Tax collected

KPI 2

Number empty homes <6m brought back into use

KPI 3

Number of new homes approved

KPI 4

Number of new homes built

KPI 5

Number of AFFORDABLE homes BUILT

KPI 6

Number of larger family/aspirational homes built

KPI 7

External funding for Economic Development
Secured

KPI 8

Percentage of Non-domestic Rates Collected

KPI 16

Percentage of complaints resolved at stage one

KPI 18

% Recycling Rate - percentage of household waste
sent for reuse, recycling and composting

KPI 19

Residual Waste collected per household (kg)

KPI 20

Percentage CTAX payed using DDeb payment

3

Page 17

Was the
20/21_ Q4
target
met?

-

Was the
20/21
annual
target
met?

Was the
20/21
outturn
better
than
19/20?

EXE15062021

2.3

Four KPIs did not meet their quarterly and annual target or match performance
compared to the previous year, for these KPIs the following context is offered,


KPI 11 - Speed of processing new Council Tax Reduction Scheme claims.
The speed of processing claims has been impacted by a number of factors over the
last year, including, an overall increase in the number of claims to process, changes
to universal credit notifications, additional statutory functions placed on the Benefits
Team, including Covid Test and Trace Payments and Council Tax Hardship Fund
administration, and changes in staffing.
For this area of the business four KPIs are used to monitor the speed of processing
Housing Benefits and Councils Tax claim administration. The factors listed above can
be seen to have had an impact on all four of the ‘speed of processing’ KPI measures
throughout the year, however at the end of Quarter four, three out of four of these
KPIs had met the quarterly target and were ‘back on track’. Please see Appendix A
for full details and charts that plot KPIs 10, 11, 12 and 13 relating to speed of
processing.
Targeted process improvements and staff training have been implemented and it is
expected that the processing time for new Council Tax Reduction Scheme claims (KPI
11) will fall back within target going forward into 2021/22.



KPI 8 – Percentage of Business Rates collected.
The overall annual target for business rates collection was 99.20%, the actual
amount collected was 98.55% which is 0.65% below target and 0.65 % less than was
collected in the previous year.
Quarterly collection targets were met in the first three quarters of the year,
however, less than expected NNDR collected in quarter four impacted the annual
average collection rate. The 98% collection rate achieved is still above the annual
average collection rate for the previous three years combined, which is 95.69%
(2017/18 98.68%, 2018/19 89.19%, 2019/20 99.2%).



KPI 18 - Percentage of household waste sent for reuse, recycling and composting.
The annual target of 37% recycling rate was not met and this was a decrease
compared to 36% in 2019/20.
Although there was a 29% increase in recyclates collected during 2020/21 compared
to the previous year, an overall increase in the volume of all waste collected and a
4

Page 18

EXE15062021

reduction in green waste resulted in reduced recycling rates. Necessary service and
resource reconfigurations in response to the Covid 19 pandemic meant that there
were delays to the start of the garden waste collection service, as a result there was
a significant reduction in garden waste collected (17.9% reduction compared on the
previous year).


KPI 19 Residual Waste Collected – Equated per household.
The annual target for this KPI was not met. 515 tonnes of residual waste (equated
per household) were collected in 2020/21 compared to 471 tonnes per household in
2019/20.
During 2020/21 there was an overall increase of 5.9% in the total volume of waste
collected compared to the previous year (2019/20 - 20,990.2 tons collected and
2020/21 - 22,221.5 tons collected). The increase can be attributed to changes in
behaviour and practices as a result of the Covid 19 pandemic and lockdowns.
Community engagement and educational activities planned for 2021/22 will aim to
prioritise waste reduction and improve recycling and diversion rate.

3.0

CONCLUSIONS

3.1

Throughout 2020/21, while mitigating the ongoing challenges of the Covid 19
pandemic, key corporate and operational activities were maintained and the
impacts on operational delivery were assessed by the Corporate Leadership Team
through the Performance Framework.

3.2

Strategic and partnership activity continued and progress was reported to Full
Council on 27th April 2021 through the Mayors Executive Report.

4.

STATUTORY OFFICER COMMENTS

4.1

Legal comments are: No legal issues arise from this report

4.2

The Monitoring Officer’s comments are: This report provides a progress update to
the Executive on key deliverables arising from the Corporate Strategy. Any legal
issues arising from any individual key deliverables will be dealt with as appropriate.

4.3

The Section 151 Officer’s comments are: Contained within the report
The Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy, 2020/21 Budget and Capital Plan
underpins the Corporate Strategy

4.4

EIA Comments: The Corporate Strategy and Service Plans against which
performance is measured have undergone Equality Impact Assessments. Individual
5

Page 19

EXE15062021

projects and partnership delivery against the Corporate Delivery Plan are subject to
provide EIAs.
4.5

Policy Framework: Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules as set down in
the Council’s Constitution. This report directly reports on the delivery of the
Corporate Strategy and associated documents.

5.

APPENDICIES Appendix A – KPI Report for Q4 of 2020/21

6

Page 20

Appendix A

Key Performance Indicator Report for Quarter 4 of 2020/21
KPI 1 Percentage of Council Tax collected

Value

Target

Value vs
Target

Q1 2020/21

28.73%

23.79%

4.94%

0.54% difference when compared to 29.27% in the same quarter in 2019/20

Q2 2020/21

55.53%

47.58%

7.95%

1.03% difference when compared to 56.56% in the same quarter in 2019/20

Q3 2020/21

82.88%

71.37%

11.51%

1.07% difference when compared to 83.95% in the same quarter in 2019/20

Q4 2020/21

95.85%

95.16%

.69%

1.3% difference when compared to 97.15% in the same quarter in 2019/20

Page 21

2020/21 Total

95.85%

95.16%

.69%

Status

Trend compared to last year and notes

The annual target for this KPI was met, 95.85% of Council Tax was collected in
2020/21.
For comparison, last year 97% was collected, this equates to a 1.3% reduction in the
collection rate.

KPI performance 2020-21

KPI trend over last 2 years

1

Appendix A

KPI 2 Number empty homes <6months brought back into use
Value

Target

Value vs
Target

Q1 2020/21

29

20

9

Compared to 22 in the same quarter last year

Q2 2020/21

19

20

-1

Compared to 12 in the same quarter last year

Q3 2020/21

52

20

32

Compared to 49 in the same quarter last year

Q4 2020/21

-

20

-

100

80

20

2020/21

Status

Trend compared to last year and notes

This KPI relies on the analysis of data provided by Cumbria County Council, the Q4
figures were not available at the time of reporting. Using data from the other three
quarters, the annual target has been met for 2020/21. This has also exceeded the
number of empty homes brought back into use in the previous year 2019/20 (84)

Page 22

KPI performance 2020-21

KPI trend over last 2 years

2

Appendix A

KPI 3 Number of new homes approved
Value

Target

Value vs
Target

Q1 2020/21

26

50

-24

Compared to 18 in the same quarter 2019/20

Q2 2020/21

109

50

59

Compared to 108 in the same quarter 2019/20

Q3 2020/21

45

50

-5

Compared to 27 in the same quarter 2019/20

Q4 2020/21

57

50

7

Compared to 127 in the same quarter 2019/20

2020/21 Total

237

200

37

Status

Trend compared to last year and notes

The annual target for this KPI was met. When compared to last year, the number of
new homes approved was less in 2020/21 (237) than to 2020/19 (280)

Page 23

KPI performance 2020-21

KPI trend over last 2 years

3

Appendix A

KPI 4 Number of new homes built
Value

Target

Value vs
Target

Q1 2020/21

13

35

-22

Compared to 43 new homes build in the same quarter 2019/20

Q2 2020/21

58

35

23

Compared to 43 new homes build in the same quarter 2019/20

Q3 2020/21

37

35

2

Compared to 50 new homes build in the same quarter 2019/20

Q4 2020/21

45

35

10

Compared to 15 new homes build in the same quarter 2019/20

2020/21 Total

153

140

13

Status

Trend compared to last year and notes

The annual target for this KPI was met and the total number of new homes built in
2020/21 ( 153) was greater than the previous year (151 in 2019/20)

Page 24

KPI performance 2020-21

KPI trend over last 2 years

4

Appendix A

KPI 5 Number of AFFORDABLE homes BUILT
Value

Target

Value vs
Target

Q1 2020/21

16

3.5

12.5

Compared to 0 affordable homes built in the same quarter in 2019/20

Q2 2020/21

22

3.5

18.5

Compared to 0 affordable homes built in the same quarter in 2019/20

Q3 2020/21

0

3.5

-3.5

Compared to 0 affordable homes built in the same quarter in 2019/20

Q4 2020/21

0

3.5

-3.5

Compared to 4 affordable homes built in the same quarter in 2019/20

2020/21 Total

38

14

24

Status

Trend compared to last year and notes

The annual target for this KPI was met and the number of affordable homes built in
2020/21 (38) was greater than 2019/20 (4)

Page 25

KPI performance 2020-21

KPI trend over last 2 years

5

Appendix A

KPI 6 Number of larger family and aspirational homes built
Value

Target

Value vs
Target

Q1 2020/21

12

5

7

Compared to 24 aspirational homes built in the same quarter in 2019/20

Q2 2020/21

18

5

13

Compared to 11 aspirational homes built in the same quarter in 2019/20

Q3 2020/21

27

5

22

Compared to 21 aspirational homes built in the same quarter in 2019/20

Q4 2020/21

14

5

9

Compared to 11 aspirational homes built in the same quarter in 2019/20

2020/21 Total

71

21

50

Status

Trend compared to last year and notes

The annual target was met and the number of new homes built in 2020/21 (71) was
greater than 2019/20 (61).

Page 26

KPI performance 2020-21

KPI trend over last 2 years

6

Appendix A

KPI 7 External funding for Economic Development Secured
Value

Target

Value vs Target

Q1 2020/21

£1056649.00

£125000.00

£931649.00

Q2 2020/21

£1000000.00

£125000.00

£875000.00

Q3 2020/21

£0.00

£125000.00

-£125000.00

Q4 2020/21

£140000.00

£125000.00

£15000.00

2020/21

£2196649.00

£500000.00

£1696649.00

Trend compared to last year and notes
The annual target of £500,000 was met and the overall amount of external
funding secured for 2020/21 was £2.1 million. Funding secured for economic
development in 2020/21 comprised
£1056649.00 – CLEP Match funding for Whitehaven Future High Streets Fund
£1000000.00 – Town Fund Accelerated Funding (Cleator Moor and Millom)
£140000.00 - MHCLG RDEL capacity funding
For comparison purposes, a total of £2584909.00 was secured for economic
development in 2019/20

KPI performance 2020-21

KPI trend over last 2 years

Page 27
7

Appendix A

KPI 8 Percentage of Non-domestic Rates Collected
Value

Target

Value vs
Target

Q1 2020/21

81.85%

24.90%

56.95%

Compared to 77.62% collected in the same quarter in 2019/20

Q2 2020/21

88.65%

49.80%

38.85%

Compared to 86.42% collected in the same quarter in 2019/20

Q3 2020/21

95.20%

74.70%

20.50%

Compared to 94.37% collected in the same quarter in 2019/20

Q4 2020/21

98.55%

99.20%

-.65%

Compared to 99.20% collected in the same quarter in 2019/20

2020/21

98.55%

99.20%

-.65%

Status

Trend compared to last year and notes

The annual target for this KPI was not met 98.55% NNDR was collected in the year
which was 0.65% less than last year.

KPI performance 2020-21

KPI trend over last 2 years

Page 28
8

Appendix A

KPI 9 Local people supported with employability and skills
Value

Target

Value vs Target Status

Trend compared to last year and notes

Q1 2020/21

37

15

22

Compared to 12 people supported in the same quarter last year

Q2 2020/21

54

15

39

Compared to 0 people supported in the same quarter last year

Q3 2020/21

28

15

13

Compared to 20 people supported in the same quarter last year

Q4 2020/21

28

15

13

Compared to 51 people supported in the same quarter last year

2020/21

147

65

82

The annual target for this KPI was met and a greater number of people
were supported through the Skills and Work Programme in 2020/21 (147)
than in 2019/20 (83)

Page 29

KPI performance 2020-21

KPI trend over last 2 years

9

Appendix A

KPI 10 Speed of processing - new Housing Benefits claims
Value

Target

Value vs
Target

Q1 2020/21

11.06

18

-6.94

Compared to 10 days to process a new HB claim in the same quarter last year

Q2 2020/21

13.38

18

-4.62

Compared to 6 days to process a new HB claim in the same quarter last

Q3 2020/21

14.36

18

-3.64

Compared to 8 days to process a new HB claim in the same quarter last

Q4 2020/21

14.14

18

-3.86

Compared to 11 days to process a new HB claim in the same quarter last

2020/21

13.32

18

-4.68

The annual target for this KPI was met. When compared to the previous year,
processing times were greater in 2020/21 (13 days) than 2019/20 (8.7 days).

Status

Trend compared to last year and notes

KPI performance 2020-21

KPI trend over last 2 years

Page 30
10

Appendix A

KPI 11 Speed of processing - new CTR claims
Value

Target

Value vs
Target

Q1 2020/21

17.62 days

18

-0.38

Compared to 11 days to process a new CTRS claims in the same quarter last year

Q2 2020/21

23.57

18

5.57

Compared to 23 days to process a new CTRS claims in the same quarter last year

Q3 2020/21

28.52

18

10.52

Compared to 14 days to process a new CTRS claims in the same quarter last year

Q4 2020/21

20.59

18

2.59

Compared to 17 days to process a new CTRS claims in the same quarter last year

2020/21

22.57

18

4.5 days

Status

Trend compared to last year and notes

The annual target for this KPI was not met. On average it took 22.5 days to process a
new Council Tax Reduction Scheme claim compare to 17 days in 2019/20.

KPI performance 2020-21

KPI trend over last 2 years

Page 31
11

Appendix A

KPI 12 Speed of processing - changes of circumstances for HB claims
Value

Target

Value vs Target Status

Trend compared to last year and notes

Q1 2020/21

7.99

10

-2.01

Compared to 6.6 days to process in the same quarter last year

Q2 2020/21

10.23

10

0.23

Compared to 5 days to process in the same quarter last year

Q3 2020/21

13.25

10

3.25

Compared to 5 days to process in the same quarter last year

Q4 2020/21

2.11

10

-7.89

Compared to 1.8 days to process in the same quarter last year

2020/21

8.39

10

-1.6

On average it took 8 days to process a Housing Benefits change of
circumstances. For comparison the average time to process in 2019/20
was 3 days.

Page 32

KPI performance 2020-21

KPI trend over last 2 years

12

Appendix A

KPI 13 Speed of processing - changes of circumstances for CTR claims
Value

Target

Value vs Target Status

Trend compared to last year and notes

Q1 2020/21

7.36

10

-2.64

Compared to 11 days to process in the same quarter last year

Q2 2020/21

9.49

10

-0.51

Compared to 7 days to process in the same quarter last year

Q3 2020/21

18.62

10

8.62

Compared to 5 days to process in the same quarter last year

Q4 2020/21

4.79

10

-5.21

Compared to 3.5 days to process in the same quarter last year

2020/21

14.2 days

10

4.2 days

The target of 10 days to process a CTRS change of circumstances was met
in three of the four quarters in 2020/21. The annual average did not meet
the target and was an increase on last year which was 6 days to process.

KPI performance 2020-21

KPI trend over last 2 years

Page 33
13

Appendix A

KPI 14 Homeless relief cases resolved within 52 days
Target

Value vs
Target

Q1 2020/21

95%

90%

5%

Compared to 92% in the same quarter last year - 41 from 43 within 56 days

Q2 2020/21

94%

90%

4%

Compared to 88% in the same quarter last year - 42 from 45 within 56 days

Q3 2020/21

94%

90%

4%

Compared to 96% in the same quarter last year - 29 of 31 cases within 56 days

Q4 2020/21

93%

90%

3%

Compared to 98% in the same quarter last year - 39 of 42 cases resolved within 56
days

4%

The annual target for this KPI was met and 94% of homeless relief cases were
resolved within the statutory timeframe of 52 days.
This was an increase of 2% on the previous year where 92 % were resolved in
timeframe.

Page 34

Value

2020/21

94%

90%

Status

Trend compared to last year and notes

KPI performance 2020-21

KPI trend over last 2 years

14

Appendix A

KPI 15 Domestic Abuse intervention and support Project – satisfaction with support provided
Value

Target

Value vs Target

Q1 2020/21

100%

90%

10%

Q2 2020/21

-

90%

-

Q3 2020/21

100%

90%

10%

Q4 2020/21

100%

90%

10%

2020/21

100%

90%

10%

Status

Trend compared to last year and notes
Satisfaction with the support provided the Domestic Abuse and
Sexual Exploitation Intervention and support project remained
at 100% for easy quarter in 2020/21.
No data was collected in quarter 2 due to the impact of Covid
on service resource.

KPI performance 2020-21

KPI trend over last 2 years

Page 35
15

Appendix A

KPI 16 Percentage of complaints resolved at stage one
Value

Target

Value vs
Target

Q1 2020/21

95%

90.00%

5%

Compared to 96% of complaints resolved at stage 1 in the same quarter last year

Q2 2020/21

93%

90.00%

3%

Compared to 96% of complaints resolved at stage 1 in the same quarter last year

Q3 2020/21

90%

90.00%

-

Compared to 94% of complaints resolved at stage 1 in the same quarter last year

Q4 2020/21

90%

90.00%

-

Compared to 97% of complaints resolved at stage 1 in the same quarter last year

2020/21

92%

90%

2%

Status

Trend compared to last year and notes

The annual target of 90% was met. The percentage of complaints resolved at stage
one in 2020/21 (92%) was slightly less than compared to the previous year (95%)

Page 36

KPI performance 2020-21

KPI trend over last 2 years

16

Appendix A

KPI 17 Percentage of Freedom of information requests resolved within timescale
Value

Target

Value vs
Target

Q1 2020/21

87%

85.00%

2%

Q2 2020/21

80%

85.00%

-5.00%

Q3 2020/21

89%

85.00%

4.00%

Compared to 95% of FOIs closed in timescale in the same quarter last year

Q4 2020/21

92%

90.00%

2%

Compared to 94% of FOIs closed in timescale in the same quarter last year

2020/21

87%

90.00%

-3%

Status

Trend compared to last year and notes
Compared to 82% of FOIs closed in timescale in the same quarter last year
Compared to 76% of FOIs closed in timescale in the same quarter last year

Page 37

While the quarterly targets were met in 3 out of 4 of the quarters, the annual target
of 90% was not met for this KPI. Performance was better than that of the previous
year which was 86%. Staff recruitment and training have taken place in Q1 of
2021/22 and this increased resilience is anticipated to increase the response rate
going forward.

KPI performance 2020-21

KPI trend over last 2 years

17

Appendix A

KPI 18 % Recycling Rate - Percentage of household waste sent for reuse, recycling and composting
Value

Target

Value vs
Target

Q1 2020/21

38%

37%

1%

Compared to 44% recycling rate in the same quarter last year

Q2 2020/21

41%

37%

4%

Compared to 44% recycling rate in the same quarter last year

Q3 2020/21

30%

37%

-7%

Compared to 40% recycling rate in the same quarter last year

Q4 2020/21

27%

37 %

-9%

Compared to 36% recycling rate in the same quarter last year

Status

Trend compared to last year and notes

The annual target of 37% recycling rate was not met. This is a decrease when
compared to 36% in 2019/20

Page 38

2020/21

35%

37 %

-2%

Delays to garden waste collections reduced the overall recycling rate significantly (17.9
% reduction in garden waste collected on the previous year).
Although there was a 29% increase in recyclates collected during 2020/21 compared to
the previous year, an overall increase in the volume of all waste collected and reduction
in green waste resulted in reduced recycling rates.

KPI performance 2020-21

KPI trend over last 2 years

18

Appendix A

KPI 19 Residual Waste collected – equated per household (kg)

Value

Target

Value vs
Target

Q1 2020/21

130

100

30

Q2 2020/21

128

100

28

Compared to 115 in the same quarter last year

Q3 2020/21

122

100

22

Compared to 112 in the same quarter last year

Q4 2020/21

135

100

35

Compared to 129 in the same quarter last year

Page 39

2020/21

515

400

115

Status

Trend compared to last year and notes
Compared to 115 in the same quarter last year

The annual target for this KPI was not met. 515 tonnes of residual waste (per
household) were collected in 2020/21 compared to 471 tonnes per household in
2019/20.
During 2020/21 there was an increase of 5.9% in the total volume of waste collected
compared to the previous year (2019/20 - 20,990.2 tons collected and 2020/21 22,221.5 tons collected).
This increase can be attributed to changes in behaviour and practices as a result of the
Covid 19 pandemic and lockdowns. Community engagement and educational activities
planned for 2021/22 will aim to prioritise waste reduction and improve recycling and
diversion rate.

KPI performance 2020-21

KPI trend over last 2 years

19

Appendix A

KPI 20 Percentage CTAX payed using DDeb payment method
Value

Target

Value vs Target Status

Trend compared to last year and notes

Q1 2020/21

-

60%

-

Q2 2020/21

63.96%

60%

3.96%

Compared to 63% collected in the same quarter last year.

Q3 2020/21

62.67%

60%

2.67%

Compared to 62% collected in the same quarter last year.

Q4 2020/21

63.13%

60%

3.13%

Compared to 61% collected in the same quarter last year.

2020/21

63.25%

60%

3.25%

Nil return in Quarter 1 due to the impact of Covid

The annual target was met and the performance was improved compared
to last year (62% collection rate in 20219/20)

Page 40

KPI performance 2020-21

KPI trend over last 2 years

20

Appendix A

KPI 21 Percentage of 'major' planning applications determined within 13 weeks
Value

Target

Value vs Target

Status

Trend compared to last year and notes

Q1 2020/21

100.00%

65.00%

35.00%

Compared to 100% in the same quarter last year

Q2 2020/21

100.00%

65.00%

35.00%

Compared to 100% in the same quarter last year

Q3 2020/21

100.00%

65.00%

35.00%

Compared to 100% in the same quarter last year

Q4 2020/21

100.00%

65.00%

35.00%

Compared to 100% in the same quarter last year

2020/21

100.00%

65.00%

35.00%

The annual target was met and exceeded again for this KPI

KPI performance 2020-21

KPI trend over last 2 years

Page 41
21

Appendix A

KPI 22 Percentage of planning 'minor' planning applications determined within 8 weeks
Value

Target

Value vs Target

Status

Trend compared to last year and notes

Q1 2020/21

100.00%

80.00%

20.00%

Compared to 97% in the same quarter last year

Q2 2020/21

97.67%

80.00%

17.67%

Compared to 100% in the same quarter last year

Q3 2020/21

95.50%

80.00%

15.50%

Compared to 99% in the same quarter last year

Q4 2020/21

97.00%

80.00%

17.00%

Compared to 97% in the same quarter last year

2020/21

97.54%

80.00%

17.54%

The annual target was met and exceeded again for this KPI

KPI performance 2020-21

KPI trend over last 2 years

Page 42
22

Appendix A

KPI 23 Percentage of 'other' applications determined within 8 weeks
Value

Target

Value vs Target

Status

Trend compared to last year and notes

Q1 2020/21

100.00%

80.00%

20.00%

Compared to 98% in the same quarter last year

Q2 2020/21

100.00%

80.00%

20.00%

Compared to 100% in the same quarter last year

Q3 2020/21

100.00%

80.00%

20.00%

Compared to 98% in the same quarter last year

Q4 2020/21

100.00%

80.00%

20.00%

Compared to 100% in the same quarter last year

2020/21

100.00%

80.00%

20.00%

The annual target was met and exceeded again for this KPI

KPI performance 2020-21

KPI trend over last 2 years

Page 43
23

Appendix A

KPI 24 Percentage of planning appeals dismissed
Value

Target

Value vs Target

Status

Trend compared to last year and notes

Q1 2020/21

100.00%

80.00%

20.00%

Compared to 100% in the same quarter last year

Q2 2020/21

80.00%

80.00%

.00%

Compared to 100% in the same quarter last year

Q3 2020/21

100.00%

80.00%

20.00%

Compared to 100% in the same quarter last year

Q4 2020/21

100.00%

80.00%

20.00%

Compared to 50% in the same quarter last year

2020/21

95.00%

80.00%

15.00%

The annual target was met and exceeded again for this KPI

KPI performance 2020-21

KPI trend over last 2 years

Page 44
24

Agenda Item 8

Executive 15 June 2021
The Proposed Introduction of a Community Lottery in Copeland

LEAD MEMBER:
LEAD OFFICER:
REPORT AUTHOR:

Cllr Steven Morgan, Portfolio Holder for
Commercial Services
Sarah Pemberton Director Corporate Services and
Commercial Strategy
Caroline Adams, Commercial Projects Officer.

RECOMMENDATIONS:
Executive is requested to:
1. support and approve the introduction of a Community Lottery in
Copeland to benefit local charities and community groups;
2. agree to appoint Gatherwell Ltd as our External Lottery Manager, to set
up and operate the Lottery;
3. approve the criteria for voluntary and community organisations
wishing to join the Copeland Community Lottery as good causes, as set
out in Appendix A to this report;
4. delegate authority to the Director of Corporate Services and
Commercial Strategy to apply to the Gambling Commission for the
licenses required to operate the lottery.
5. delegates the authority to the Director of Corporate Services and
Commercial Strategy for the management, oversight and approval of
policies and procedures associated with the lottery.

Page 45

1.0 INTRODUCTION
1.1 Copeland community groups and charities provide valued support to
residents. This help has played a vital role during the COVID-19
lockdown response and as the borough continues on the road to
recovery.
1.2 The COVID-19 response has also allowed the Council to reflect and
re-focus on supporting the well-being of residents and economic
recovery through the ethos of local support for local benefit, as
demonstrated in the Shop Local campaign.
1.3 To ensure continued financial support for local charities and community
groups, many local authorities have created community lotteries. Good
causes are encouraged to participate as part of their fund raising
activities and in doing so receive a percentage of ticket sales.
1.4 An External Lottery Manager, Gatherwell, contacted the Council in early
2020 to propose creating a community lottery in Copeland.
1.5 This report looks at how the introduction of a lottery would work and
how it could provide ongoing support for community groups and
charities to continue to provide local support for all residents.

2.0 BACKGROUND
2.1. Lotteries are regulated under the Gambling Act 2005. The Act includes,
as a permitted category of lottery, a “local authority lottery”. Local
Authority lotteries are lotteries promoted by the authority and require
the authority to be licensed by the Gambling Commission.
2.2. Local Authority lotteries have to deliver a minimum of 20% of proceeds
to purposes for which the authority has the power to incur
expenditure.

Page 46

2.3. Local authority lotteries can be run in-house or in partnership with an
External Lottery Manager (ELM). An ELM is defined as someone that is
a person or a body who makes arrangements for a lottery on behalf of
a society or local authority, but is not a member, officer or employee of
the society or authority.
2.4. ELMs may run a lottery on behalf of the local authority, it is the
responsibility of the local authority to ensure that the lottery is
conducted in such a way as to ensure that it is lawful, and fully
complies with the Act, all license conditions and licensing codes of
practice.
2.5. Both the ELM and the Local Authority will need to hold an operating
license issued by the Gambling Commission.
2.6. A local authority is also required to have at least one Personal
Management License (PML) holder for the authority, even if an ELM
runs the lottery. The ELM will have their own PML holders.
2.7 Gatherwell Ltd were founded in 2013 and are currently the only ELM in
the UK to be licensed to work directly with Local Authorities.
2.8 The first local authority community lottery they launched was in 2015.
They are now working with 80 Councils nationally managing community
lotteries.
2.9 In 2019, the Lottery Council awarded Gatherwell External Lottery
Manager of the Year.
2.10 Gatherwell will provide the following services and support to run the
lottery:
 Website design, hosting, maintenance and development;
 Payment gateway investments (dedicated Direct Debit and payment
card accounts);
 Dedicated support telephone number, email and social media
accounts;

Page 47

 Marketing strategy support and generic design creation;
 Gambling license application support;
 Training for license holders.

2.11 The indicative timescale from approval of creating a lottery through
to launch and ticket sales is 6 months.
3.0 COMMUNITY LOTTERY – HOW IT WORKS
3.1 The local authority provides criteria for good causes that wish to
participate in the community lottery. See Appendix A outlining the
necessary criteria good causes must meet.
They are asked to submit an application form via the lottery website.
The local authority approves or rejects all applications to ensure the
lottery consists of eligible and appropriate causes.
3.2 There is no minimum or maximum number of good causes that can
participate.
3.3 Once approved, the cause is given a dedicated page on the lottery
website to promote its aim and objectives to encourage support via
ticket sales.
3.4 Gatherwell provide all administration support for free – including
creating a webpage, marketing advice, providing weekly updates on
ticket sales and forwarding revenue to a nominated account every
month. This is all covered as part of the wider management fee.
3.5 The cause can actively promote ticket sales and encourage more traffic
to the lottery site.
3.6 Tickets are purchased via the lottery website or telephone (managed
by Gatherwell).
These can be paid for by direct debit or debit card.
The player can choose which cause to support before buying their
ticket.

Page 48

3.7 A player can only buy a maximum of 20 tickets for each draw .This is
managed through the websites’ integral software.
3.8 A player can choose their own 6 numbers or opt for a “lucky dip”
3.9 Tickets cost £1.
Revenue from each ticket is broken down as follows:
50p = direct to cause of players’ choice.
10p = local authority central fund to allocate to causes as they wish.
20p = Prize fund
17p = Revenue for the ELM (Management fees).
3p = VAT (reclaimable by the council).
3.10 A total of 60% of the ticket revenue is given directly to good causes.
This compares to just 28% for the UK Lotto and 20% for the Health
Lottery.
3.11 The top prize for matching all 6 numbers is £25,000 with other prizes
for matching less numbers. The Council would also have the
opportunity to provide additional prizes.
3.12 All prize money is insured by Gatherwell. This means if the ticket sales
revenue does not cover the prize fund the council is not liable.
Gatherwell will honour all prizes to the winners.
3.13 The table below illustrates the odds on winning prizes.

Numbers matched
6
5
4
3
2

Prize
£25,000
£2000
£250
£25
3 free tickets

Page 49

Winning odds
1:1,000,000
1:55,556
1:5,556
1: 556
1: 56

3.14 The overall odds of winning a prize are 1:50. For the Health Lottery this
reduces to 1:2million and Euro Millions 1:140 million.
3.15 The lottery draw takes place weekly – every Saturday at 8pm.
3.16 The winning results are published on the lottery website and social
media channels. All winners are notified by Gatherwell.

4.0 COSTS
4.1 The set up costs for the lottery are given in the table below.
Organisation
Gatherwell
Gambling Commission
Gambling Commission
Lotteries Council
Lotteries Council
Total

Activity
Services (outlined in
2.10)
Application
License
Application
Membership

Cost
£5000
£244
£692
£25
£350
£6,311

4.2 The set up costs do not include a marketing budget to launch and
promote the lottery.
4.3 Gatherwell do not require an annual management fee. The set up cost
is a one off cost. All on-going management charges are taken from the
17p per ticket.
4.4 Gambling Commission license annual renewal = £692
Lotteries Council membership annual renewal = £350
Total £1,042
4.5 Councils have used the funds raised through the 10p per ticket awarded
to local authorities to manage on-going costs.

Page 50

5.0 POTENTIAL REVENUE RAISED
5.1 Exact revenue raised for good causes cannot be guaranteed, as it is
dependent on ticket sales. Information available on funds raised is
limited, however, from research, the table shown in appendix B gives
an indication of revenue that could be generated.
5.2 It should be noted some smaller charities and community groups only
have small fund raising targets. This level of funding still enables them
to provide a valued service.
For example, Reigate and Banstead Womens Aid are looking to sell 100
tickets per week to reach a 12 month fund raising target of £2600.
5.3 Information received from Gatherwell indicates a Borough of our
population size could expect to raise between £30,000 to £35,000 pa.
This would mean funding of £15,000 to £17,500 for good causes in
Copeland.
5.4 Receiving 10% of ticket sales would mean between £3,000 to £3,500
would go to the Council. This would cover the ongoing annual license
fee and membership of the Lottery Council.
6.0 RISKS
6.1 There is the potential for the Council to be seen to encourage and
facilitate problem gambling by introducing a lottery. Below are a
number of mitigating actions taken by Gatherwell:
 The maximum number of tickets that can be bought for a draw is 20.
 Tickets cannot be purchased on the day of the draw and must be
paid for by direct debit or card. This reduces the feelings of instant
reward and gratification for the player associated with problem
gambling.
 Strict guidelines are in place to prevent the marketing of the lottery
to underage and vulnerable people.
 Links to Gamble Aware are placed on the lottery website.
6.2 Money paid to Gatherwell is a one off set up cost. The ongoing
management fees are taken from each ticket sale.

Page 51

6.3 Annual renewal cost for the Gambling Commission License and the
Lottery Council membership are low and could be covered from
revenues generated from the allocated 10p per ticket sale.
6.4 There is no cost to the good cause to be part of the community lottery.
They receive 50 % of the ticket sales for their cause every month.
6.5 The lottery industry is highly regulated .Gatherwell are very
experienced in managing 80 local authority community lotteries.
6.6 The Council set the criteria and approve causes to participate in the
lottery – reducing the risk of fraud to the public.
6.7 The Prize fund is insured by Gatherwell, which ensures all prize winners
to be rewarded (regardless of ticket sales).The Council is not liable to
provide prizes.
7.0 CONCLUSION
7.1 By participating in the community lottery, residents are actively
providing local support for local benefit.
7.2 Community groups and charities in Copeland can benefit from a free,
profile raising, online fund raising tool to generate income.
7.3 The Council can provide ongoing support for good causes for Copeland
through a low risk and cost vehicle by creating a community lottery.

8.0
8.1

STATUTORY OFFICER COMMENTS
The Monitoring officer and Legal Comments are:
The report sets out in detail the legal requirements of operating a
local lottery and no further comment is needed. In respect of
procurement if approval is given to establish the Lottery using
Gatherwell Ltd as ELM, an exemption report will need to be
completed in the usual manner and in accordance with the Council’s
contract standard order explaining that the procurement is of such a

Page 52

specialised nature that the services can only be obtained from one
particular supplier. In the event that Gatherwell Ltd was appointed as
ELM, the relationship would be subject to a comprehensive legal
agreement confirming the precise nature of all legal obligations and
responsibilities for both parties
8.2

The Section 151 Officer’s comments are:
The financial implications are set out in the report

8.3

EIA Comments:
There are no equality or diversity implications arising from this
report. However, there may be members of the community who
object to the community lottery on moral and religious grounds.

9.0 RESOURCE REQUIREMENTS
9.1 A senior officer will be assigned to be the Personal Management
License holder.
9.2 It is recommended this assigned officer will also oversee the following
as part of running a lottery:
 Ensuring the lottery is lawful and complies with the Gambling Act
2005.
 Creates the criteria for good causes to participate
 Reviews and approves/rejects applications submitted by good
causes.
 Ensures the lottery returns are submitted as required.
 The annual renewal of the Gambling Commission License and
membership of the Lotteries Council.
9.3 The communications team will be required to develop a communication
plan for the launch and ongoing participation in the lottery.
9.4 All other resource is provided by and managed by Gatherwell
10. HOW WILL THE PROPOSALS BE PROJECT MANAGED AND HOW ARE
THE RISKS GOING TO BE MANAGED?

Page 53

10.1 Setting up and launching the lottery will from the scope of a
community lottery project and will follow the Councils own project
management framework – including logging all risks and mitigating
actions.
10.2 Working with 80 other Councils, Gatherwell have vast experience in
setting up, launching and running a community lottery. They are
committed to supporting the Council in every step of setting up the
lottery. This will form the basis of the project management to include
timescales and risk.
11.0 WHAT MEASURABLE OUTCOMES OR OUTPUTS WILL ARISE FROM
THIS REPORT?
11.1 Good causes will receive additional income to sustain their services
for the residents of Copeland.
11.2 Copeland Borough Council will receive a small income from ticket sales
that will be re invested in good causes in Copeland.
List of Appendices
Appendix A Criteria for good causes to participate in the Copeland
Community Lottery.
Appendix B Potential revenue

Page 54

Appendix A
Criteria for good causes participating in the Copeland Community Lottery.
We would like to encourage as many eligible good causes as possible to join
the Copeland Community Lottery. There is no application fee.
To be able to participate and to comply with regulations set out under the
Councils gambling license (Gambling Act 2005) certain criteria must be met.
Your organisation must:
 provide community activities or services within the borough which
benefit Copeland residents;
 Have a constitution;
 Have a bank account;
 Operate with no undue restrictions on membership
 Be either:
A registered charity, with a board of trustees;
A registered Community Interest Company; or
Any other constituted group with a volunteer management committee
comprising at least 3 members and which meets at least 3 times a year.
Applications will not be considered from:
 Groups promoting campaigns that do not directly relate to the provision
of community activities or services within Copeland.
 Organisations that do not work within the borough boundaries.
 Individuals
 Organisations which aim to distribute profit.
 Organisations with no established management committee/board of
trustees (unless a CIC)
The Council reserves the right to:



reject any application for any reason (including incomplete applications);
terminate the participation of any organisation with a minimum of 7 days’
notice for any reason, unless fraudulent or illegal activity is suspected in
which case termination will be immediate.

Page 55

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix B – Examples of revenue generated through community lotteries managed by Gatherwell.
Local Authority
King’s Lynn & West Norfolk
Borough Council

Lottery name

Launched

Total No of causes

Total raised

WestNorfolkWins

2018

60

£34,000 in first 10 months of lottery
launch.

Bournemouth Borough Council

BH Coastal Lottery

2019

unknown

£17,679 in first 2 months of lottery
launch.

Broxtowe Borough Council

Broxtowe Lotto

2018

unknown

£17,000 in first 12 months of lottery
launch.

Rushmoor Borough Council

Rushmoor Community Lottery

2017

107

£78,000 from Aug 2017 – June 2020

Havant Borough Council

Havant Lottery

2019

80

£66,000

Page 57

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9
Executive 15/06/21
Standards and Ethics 17/06/21
CONFIDENTIAL REPORTING (WHISTLEBLOWING) POLICY
EXECUTIVE MEMBER:

LEAD OFFICER:
REPORT AUTHOR:
REPORT SUMMARY:

Mayor Mike Starkie (Portfolio Holder for
Strategic Leadership to include audit, corporate
reputation and risk);
Sarah Pemberton, Director of Corporate
Resources and Commercial Strategy; and
Peta Leigh, Corporate Policy Officer.
This report recommends the approval of a
revised Confidential Reporting
(Whistleblowing) Policy to show how the
Council will respond to disclosures of
wrongdoing by the Council.

RECOMMENDATIONS:
(a) That, subject to recommendation (b), the Executive approves the
Confidential Reporting (Whistleblowing) Policy attached as an appendix to
this report; and
(b) That the Director of Corporate Resources and Commercial Strategy, in
consultation with the Mayor, be delegated with authority to make the final
approval to the said Confidential Reporting (Whistleblowing) Policy following
its consideration and/or amendment by the Standards and Ethics
Committee.

1.0

INTRODUCTION

1.1

Whistleblowing refers to when a worker passes on information
concerning wrongdoing by the Council. By law a worker making such
disclosure is protected by law in that it provides the right for a worker to
take a case to an employment tribunal if they have been victimised at
work or they have lost their job because they have ‘blown the whistle’
on wrongdoing.

Page 59

1.2

The Department for Business, Innovation and Skills has issued Guidance
for Employers and a Code of Practice on Whistleblowing. In respect of
policy making that guidance states that “As an employer it is good
practice to create an open, transparent and safe working environment
where workers feel able to speak up. Although the law does not require
employers to have a whistleblowing policy in place, the existence of a
whistleblowing policy shows an employer’s commitment to listen to the
concerns of workers. By having clear policies and procedures for dealing
with whistleblowing, an organisation demonstrates that it welcomes
information being brought to the attention of management”.

1.3

The DBIS’s Guidance is available via this link https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/u
ploads/attachment_data/file/415175/bis-15-200-whistleblowingguidance-for-employers-and-code-of-practice.pdf . The Guidance
promotes the adoption of a policy as it will recognise workers as the
valuable ears and eyes of the authority, creates the right open and
supportive culture, allows a prompt and proper response to disclosures
as well as the control of wrongdoing and provides a means to resolving
issues quickly.

2.0

REVISED POLICY/PROCESS

2.1

The Council has had a whistleblowing code in place for a number of
years. This current review formalises it as a policy. The proposed policy is
attached as an appendix to this report. Consultation has taken place
with the STUGG. In terms of process the policy does not form part of the
policy framework nor the constitution. By law approval of the policy is
therefore an executive function.

2.2

The Standards and Ethic Committee is delegated the task of monitoring
‘the operation of the Council’s whistle-blowing policy’. That Committee’s
views should be sought on the proposed policy and recommendation (b)
allows for this.

2.3

The Executive is asked to consider the attached policy and to approve it
subject to the Chief Executive providing final approval in consultation
with the Mayor following consideration by the Standards and Ethic
Committee.

Page 60

3.0

FINANCIAL, LEGAL AND OTHER COMMENTS

3.1

Monitoring Officer/Legal comments are: Process and legal comments
are included within the report.

3.2

Section 151 Officer’s comments are: No financial implications arise from
this report.

3.3

EIA Comments: No issues arise from this report.

3.4

Policy Framework: Not applicable.

3.5

Other Consultee Comments, if any: None.

4.0

HOW WILL THE PROPOSALS BE PROJECT MANAGED AND HOW ARE THE
RISKS GOING TO BE MANAGED?
Not applicable. The Policy sets out how disclosures of wrongdoing will be
dealt with and who they should be reported to.

5.0

WHAT MEASURABLE OUTCOMES OR OUTPUTS WILL ARISE FROM THIS
REPORT?
Not applicable.

Appendices:
Confidential reporting (whistleblowing) policy.
List of Background Documents:
Guidance as referred to in paragraph 1.3 above.

Page 61

This page is intentionally left blank

Confidential Reporting
(Whistleblowing)
Policy

Version: V1.3 Draft
Policy Date: March 2021

Page 63

Confidential Reporting Policy V1.3 draft Mar 2021

Document Control
Organisation
Title
Version
Author
Filename
Owner

Copeland Borough Council
Confidential Reporting Policy
V1.3
Policy Officer
Sarah Pemberton, Director of Corporate
services and Commercial, Monitoring Officer
Confidential reporting (‘Whistle blowing’)
Draft
February 2023

Subject
Protective Marking
Review Date

Note: This document is uncontrolled if printed or reproduced

Revision History
Version
Reviewed
Confidential
Reporting
Code 2014
V1.2

Date Reviewed

Reviewed By

Description of Revision

November 2019

Safeguarding
Forum

Policy converted to current format
Officer details updated

February 2021

Monitoring
Officer
HR

Updated

Document Approval
Version
V1.3

Approved By
Human Resources
Corporate Leadership Team
Trade Union Consultation
Standards and Ethics
Committee
Executive

Date
February 2021
24 March 2021
22 April 2021

Document Distribution
This policy is to be distributed to all staff and elected members of Copeland Borough Council
and placed on the Council’s Intranet Site and website. A copy must also be provided to
contractors and third parties undertaking work on Copeland Borough Council premises.

Contributors
CBC
XpertHR

Confidential Reporting Code 2014
Model Whistleblowing policy
2

Page 64

Confidential Reporting Policy V1.3 draft Mar 2021

Contents
Title.......................................................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined.1
Date ..................................................................................................................................... 1
Document Control ................................................................................................................ 2
Revision History ................................................................................................................ 2
Document Approval .......................................................................................................... 2
Document Distribution ..................................................................................................... 2
Contributors ..................................................................................................................... 2
Contents............................................................................................................................... 3
Purpose ................................................................................................................................ 4
Policy Benefits ...................................................................................................................... 4
Introduction………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….4
Scope……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………5
Policy Details Including Procedures……………………………………………………………………………………….6
Roles and Responsibilities ..................................................................................................... 9
Monitoring of Policy Adherence .......................................................................................... 10
References ......................................................................................................................... 10

3

Page 65

Confidential Reporting Policy V1.3 draft Mar 2021

Purpose
The purpose of this policy is to provide a framework and guidance for council officers, elected
members, contractors and members of the public who have serious concerns regarding any
aspect of the Council’s work to voice those concerns and ensure they are addressed
consistently and fairly.

Policy Benefits
The benefits of having a policy are to:


Encourage you to feel confident in raising serious concerns and to question and act
upon them regarding any practice or set of circumstances within the organisation about
which you are concerned .



Provide channels for you to raise those concerns and receive feedback on any action
taken



Ensure that you receive a response to your concerns and that you are aware of how to
pursue your concerns if you are not satisfied



Give assurance that you will be protected from possible reprisals or victimisation if you
reasonably believe that you have made any disclosure in good faith.

Introduction
Members of the Council or its employees can be the first to realise that there may be something
seriously wrong within the Council. However, they may not express their concerns because they feel
that speaking up would be disloyal to their colleagues or to the Council. They may also fear harassment
or victimisation.
In these circumstances it may be easier to ignore the concern rather than report what may just be a
suspicion of malpractice. This policy, however, is not confined solely to employees. Should a member
of the public or a councillor or a contractor of the Council prefer to use this policy then they may do so.
The Council is committed to the highest possible standards of openness, probity and accountability. In
line with that commitment we expect elected members, employees, and others who have serious
concerns about any aspect of the Council's operations to come forward and voice those concerns. It is
recognised that most cases will have to proceed on a confidential basis.
This policy document makes it clear that you can do so without fear of victimisation, subsequent
discrimination or disadvantage. This Confidential Reporting Policy is intended to encourage and enable
employees and other persons described above to raise serious concerns about the Council rather than
overlooking a problem or ‘whistle-blowing’ external to the organisation
4

Page 66

Confidential Reporting Policy V1.3 draft Mar 2021

The policy applies to all employees, members of the public, councillors and those contractors working
for the Council on Council premises, for example, consultants, agency staff, builders and suppliers.
These procedures are in addition to the Council's Complaints Procedure and the agreed Code of
Conduct procedure for dealing with complaints about elected members. The policy caters for the
relatively rare occasions where someone feels unable to use one of the existing procedures.
This policy has been discussed with the relevant trade unions and has their support.

Scope
There are existing procedures in place to enable you to lodge a grievance relating to your own
employment or to use the Council’s complaints procedure which is designed for use by residents,
customers and members of the public who may be dissatisfied with a standard of service received from
the Council.
The Confidential Reporting Policy is intended to cover major concerns that fall outside the scope of
other procedures. These include:


Conduct which is an offence or a breach of law



Disclosures related to miscarriages of justice



Non-compliance to Health and Safety i.e. health and safety risks, including risks to the public as
well as other employees



Damage to the environment



The unauthorised use of public funds



Possible fraud and corruption



Sexual or physical abuse



Other unethical conduct.



The Council’s Standing Orders, including contract standing orders and financial regulations,
which have been, or are being, or are likely to be breached.



Information relating to any of the above which has been, is being, or is likely to be deliberately
concealed.

Thus, any serious concerns that you have about any aspect of service provision or the conduct of
officers or elected members of the Council or others acting on behalf of the Council can be reported
under the Confidential Reporting Policy.
This may be about something that:

5

Page 67

Confidential Reporting Policy V1.3 draft Mar 2021



Makes you feel uncomfortable in terms of known standards, your experience or the standards
you believe the Council subscribes to; or



Is against the Council's Standing Orders and policies; or



Falls below established and expected standards of practice; or



Amounts to improper conduct.

Policy Details including Procedures
Harassment or Victimisation
The Council is committed to good practice and high standards and wants to be supportive of
employees.
The Council recognises that the decision to report a concern can be a difficult one to make. If
what you are saying is true, you should have nothing to fear because you will be doing your
duty to your employer and you are otherwise assisting the Council.
The Council will not tolerate any harassment or victimisation (including informal pressures) and
will take appropriate action to protect you when you raise a concern in good faith.
Any investigation into allegations of potential malpractice will not influence or be influenced by
any disciplinary or redundancy procedures that already affect you.
The Council will also take appropriate action to similarly protect non-employees.
Confidentiality
All concerns will be treated in confidence and every effort will be made to deal with your
concerns anonymously.
At the appropriate time, however, you may need to come forward as a witness. If it is possible
to establish the truth about allegations from an independent source then the relevant
investigating officer will seek to do this.
Anonymous allegations
This policy encourages you to put your name to your allegation whenever possible.
Concerns expressed anonymously are much less powerful and will be not normally be
considered, other than in exceptional circumstances at the discretion of the relevant officer.
Anonymous whistle-blowers will not ordinarily be able to receive feedback and that any action
taken to look into a disclosure could be limited.

In exercising this discretion the factors to be taken into account would include:

6

Page 68

Confidential Reporting Policy V1.3 draft Mar 2021





The seriousness of the issues raised
The timeliness of the concern/allegation being reported
The credibility of the concern
The likelihood of confirming the allegation from attributable sources.

Untrue allegations
If you make an allegation in good faith, but it is not confirmed by the investigation, no action
will be taken against you.
If, however, you make an allegation frivolously, maliciously or for personal gain, action may be
taken against you. Such allegations include those which are trivial and do not have any
substance or are made persistently and anonymously for the wrong reasons, for example,
simply to make trouble, vindictiveness, or, purely out of self-interest.
How to raise a concern
If you are an employee your first step should normally be to raise concerns with your
immediate manager or their superior (if the concern is about your immediate manger).
If the complaint/concern/allegation is being initiated outside of the Council it should be raised
with the relevant line manager or service head. This depends, however, on the seriousness and
sensitivity of the issues involved and who is suspected of the malpractice. For example, if you
believe that management is involved, you should approach the Chief Executive, Monitoring
Officer or Section 151 Officer. If the Chief Executive is involved, you should approach the
Monitoring Officer.
If a Councillor is involved you should, in the first instance, approach the Monitoring Officer.
The Monitoring Officer, after consideration but pre-investigation, will signpost this to the Chief
Executive.
Concerns may be raised verbally or in writing. If you wish to make a written report, it would be
useful to include the following:



The background and history of the concern (giving relevant dates, and if applicable,
who is directly involved);
State clearly what concerns you about the situation/incident and why.

The earlier you express the concern/ bring forward your allegation, the easier it will be to
investigate, and if necessary, to take appropriate action.
Whilst you are not required to provide evidence about the allegations you should be able to
provide sufficient information to enable the employer to understand the nature of the
allegations and sufficient to decide how to proceed next.
Advice and guidance on how to pursue matters of concern may be obtained from:


Chief Executive - Pat Graham
7

Page 69

Confidential Reporting Policy V1.3 draft Mar 2021

Tel – 01946 598325
pat.graham@copeland.gov.uk


Monitoring Officer – Sarah Pemberton
01946 598443
sarah.pemberton@copeland.gov.uk



Section 151 Officer – Steven Brown
steven.brown@copeland.gov.uk

If you are an employee you may wish to consider discussing your concern with a colleague first
and you may find it easier to raise the matter if there are two (or more) of you who have had
the same experience or concerns.
You may invite your trade union representative, professional association representative or a
friend to be present during any meetings or interviews in connection with the concern(s) you
have raised
How the Council will respond
The relevant officer will respond to your concerns.
Where appropriate, the matters raised may:
 be investigated by management, internal audit, or through the disciplinary process
 be referred to the police
 be referred to the external auditor
 form the subject of an independent inquiry investigation
Initial enquiries will be made to decide whether an investigation is appropriate and, if so, what
form it should take. The overriding principle which the relevant officer will have in mind is the
public interest. Concerns or allegations which fall within the scope of specific procedures (for
example, discrimination issues) will normally be referred for consideration under those
procedures.
Some concerns may be resolved by agreed action without the need for investigation. If urgent
and corrective action is required, this will be taken before any investigation is conducted.

Within ten working days of a concern being raised, the relevant officer will write to you:






Acknowledging that the concern has been received
Indicating how the Council proposes to deal with the matter
Giving an estimate of how long it will take to provide a final response telling you
whether any initial enquiries have been made
Supplying you with information on staff support mechanisms, for example counselling,
and
Telling you whether further investigations will take place and if not, why not.
8

Page 70

Confidential Reporting Policy V1.3 draft Mar 2021

The amount of contact between the officers considering the issues and you will depend on the
nature of the matters raised, the potential difficulties involved and the clarity of the
information provided. If necessary the relevant officer will seek further information from you.
Where any meeting is arranged, off-site if you so wish, you can be accompanied by a trade
union or professional association representative, or a friend.
The relevant officer will take steps to minimise any difficulties which you may experience as a
result of raising a concern.
For instance, if you are required to give evidence in criminal or disciplinary proceedings the
relevant officer will arrange for you to receive advice about the procedure.
The relevant officer accepts that you need to be assured that the matter has been properly
addressed. Thus subject to legal constraints, we will inform you of the outcome of any
investigation
How the matter can be taken further
This policy is intended to provide you with an avenue within the Council to raise concerns. The
Council hopes you will be satisfied with any action taken. If you are not, and if you feel it is
right to take the matter outside the Council, the following are possible contact points as an
alternative or in addition to contacting the Audit Committee:






Your Trade Union
Citizens Advice
Relevant professional bodies or regulatory organisations, a relevant voluntary
organisation
The police
ACAS

Roles and Responsibilities
The Monitoring Officer has overall responsibility for the maintenance and operation of this
policy. That officer maintains a record of concerns raised and the outcomes (but in a form
which does not endanger your confidentiality) and will report annually to the Standards and
Ethics Committee on the operation of this policy.
Members and officers are responsible for making service users aware of the existence of these
procedures.

9

Page 71

Confidential Reporting Policy V1.3 draft Mar 2021

Monitoring of Policy Adherence
The Monitoring Officer is responsible for ensuring that all concerns raised follow practice and
procedure laid down in this policy.

References
CBC Dignity at Work Policy
CBC Unacceptable Behaviour Policy
CBC Comments, Compliments and Complaints Policy
CBC Safeguarding Adults Policy
CBC Employees Code of Conduct
CBC Members Code of Ethics and Conduct
CBC Data Protection and GDPR Policy
Employment Rights Act 1996
Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998
Whistleblowing. Guidance for Employers and Code of Practice 2015. (H.M. Govt Department
for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy)

10

Page 72

